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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good afternoon. If

          3  you want to testify, we feel we have taken enough

          4  testimony on this, we have had enough hearings on

          5  this. The only testimony we will take is from the

          6  Administration. If anyone has anything they want to

          7  add, you can put it in writing to us and we will

          8  make it part of the record.

          9                 Good afternoon, and welcome to

         10  today's hearings of the Committee on Transportation.

         11  Today the Committee will consider and expects to

         12  vote on proposed Intro. No. 472-A, in relation to

         13  standards of conduct for drivers of taxicabs and

         14  for-hire vehicles.

         15                 This is the second hearing the

         16  Committee has held with respect to this legislation

         17  since the Committee's last meeting on December 22nd,

         18  1998, Council staff has met with and has had

         19  discussions with various representatives of the

         20  industry, including drivers, owners and lease

         21  representatives to obtain feedback on the impact of

         22  TLC's new rules for taxicabs and for-hire vehicle

         23  drivers.

         24                 The intention of proposed No. 472-A

         25  is to achieve a compromise which includes strong
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          2  regulation of the industry without excessive and

          3  unnecessary punishment which would only have the

          4  effect of driving people out of the business.

          5                 Amendments to 472 have been made

          6  which are discussed in the Committee reports located

          7  at the side of the table. The chief provisions of

          8  proposed number 472-A are as follows:

          9                 The bill would establish a threshold

         10  of six points before a taxi or for-hire vehicle

         11  driver's license could be suspended, and ten points

         12  before a taxi driver's license can be revoked under

         13  the persistent violators program, which is based on

         14  the accumulation of points on a driver's TLC issued

         15  license. These standards would apply within a

         16  12-month time frame.

         17                 The same standards of six and ten

         18  points would apply under this critical driver

         19  program, which is based on the accumulation of the

         20  points on the driver's DMV issued license, these

         21  standards would also apply within a 12-month time

         22  frame.

         23                 A driver would receive a two-point

         24  deduction under the Persistent Violators Program,

         25  and a four-point deduction under the Critical Driver
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          2  Program upon completion of a DMV-approved defense

          3  driving course.

          4                 The point schedule established by the

          5  Taxi and Limousine Commission will remain in place

          6  as proposed in Intro. No. 472-A, does not alter

          7  their point system in any way. The bill also

          8  provides for an affirmative offense for any meter

          9  tampering violation or in the case where taxi

         10  vehicle license is revoked or suspended, that the

         11  driver or the owner did not know of or participate

         12  in any of the bad acts upon which the violation or

         13  suspension or revocation is based.

         14                 The bill also provides an affirmative

         15  offense to any violation which is based on an act

         16  which was beyond control and the influence of the

         17  driver.

         18                 Other provisions of the bill are

         19  discussed in the Committee report. The Committee

         20  looks forward to hearing from the representatives of

         21  the Administration.

         22                 The Committee also expects to vote

         23  today on Resolution No. 632, which would call up for

         24  Council review 16 base station applications, one for

         25  a new license and 15 renewal applications.
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          2                 At this time I want to welcome the

          3  Administration, in particular, I guess the first

          4  time for me before my Committee to have the First

          5  Deputy Mayor Joe Lhota, who I have a long

          6  relationship with. I remember him coming before this

          7  Committee when he was Finance Commissioner, and he

          8  moved on to OMB, and I must say it is really a

          9  pleasure to work with you, and I am honored to have

         10  you here, even though you may take a shot or two at

         11  me. I have been around a long time, but I know one

         12  thing, I respect you because you are a very able

         13  deputy mayor and a very great asset to the Mayor of

         14  the City of New York, because doing such a grateful

         15  (sic) job.

         16                 And also to a very able chairperson,

         17  who has worked closely with this Committee, and we

         18  may disagree, but that's okay, that's what it is all

         19  about, we agree t disagree, and to all its staff.

         20                 And I must tell you one thing, Mr.

         21  Deputy Mayor, while I have you, I want to say this

         22  publicly; although we may disagree on issues with

         23  the Chair, I must tell you that each time that we do

         24  call her and I speak to her, she is professional,

         25  courteous and she tries to work closely with my
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          2  office, and I appreciate that.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 Go ahead.

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Thank you, and I

          6  will attempt to follow in her footsteps.

          7                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and

          8  members of the Council. My name is Joe Lhota, Deputy

          9  Mayor for Operations.

         10                 In brief, I believe that any

         11  consideration or action regarding Intro. 472-A,

         12  which I have only received about an hour ago and

         13  have quickly read, I believe would be a mistake and

         14  will spell dire consequences for the riding public,

         15  as well as pedestrians and as well as non-taxicabs

         16  and livery motorists.

         17                 Not only is the bill fundamentally

         18  wrong, it is fundamentally wrong to legislatively

         19  supersede programs that have effectively been

         20  protecting the public and have taken bad drivers off

         21  the road for the past six or seven months. It is

         22  also poor public policy to do so purely for reasons

         23  of service special interests.

         24                 The reason for the Administration's

         25  creation of a comprehensive taxicab and livery
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          2  industry program has been well documented, with

          3  published reports and analysis of more than 100,000

          4  taxi accidents in 1990 and an alarming rise in

          5  accidents involving other form of livery vehicles, a

          6  rise that went up 60 percent between 1990 and 1997.

          7                 The Administration's decisive action

          8  in creating both the Persistent Driver and Critical

          9  Driver Programs was undeniably necessary last summer

         10  and it remains so even more today. As responsibility

         11  and accountability have been the philosophical

         12  cornerstones of this Administration, the need to

         13  hold drivers and owners responsible for their

         14  actions is at the heart of our reform, and to see

         15  this unaccountability that is put in your bill,

         16  proposed bill, to see it is wrong, and I believe

         17  totally unacceptable.

         18                 As each one of you know, this is a

         19  Mayor and his Administration devoted toward public

         20  safety, and we know we did our job in the TLC, did

         21  our job in creating the Persistent Violator Program

         22  last July.

         23                 We also know from internal analysis

         24  that shows that a high representative portion of the

         25  drivers we took action on, and we have statistics
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          2  which we will lay our during our presentation, under

          3  this new program would not trigger any action

          4  whatsoever under the Council's seriously flawed

          5  version of this bill.

          6                 In short, this proposed legislation

          7  undermines our ability to protect the public and to

          8  hold licensed drivers and owners accountable and

          9  responsible for their actions and we will continue

         10  to oppose it in any way possible.

         11                 I question the Committee's intent and

         12  motive in weakening a program that has only served

         13  to protect passengers and pedestrians' lives from

         14  the City's worst, and only worst, taxicab drivers.

         15                 I question the Committee's intent and

         16  motive on the very programs and initiatives you are

         17  questioning are not only in their infancy, but the

         18  only evidence we have is that they have been

         19  successful in attaining their goal of improving

         20  driver compliance with the laws, and as a result

         21  improving public safety.

         22                 I question the Committee's intent and

         23  motive, when there is absolutely no credible

         24  evidence being offered by anyone in the industry to

         25  show that they are suffering any undue hardship that
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          2  would at a minimum warrant consideration that such a

          3  hardship might outweigh the public safety concerns.

          4                 And finally, I ask the Committee to

          5  weigh this question: Do taxi driver concerns that

          6  you have taken up as your own outweigh the concerns

          7  of the public, outweigh the concerns of public

          8  safety and outweigh the concerns of people who voted

          9  for you?

         10                 Now I would like to let Commissioner

         11  Diane McGrath-McKechnie give her statement before we

         12  answer any questions.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

         14  you. It feels like deja vu all over again, here we

         15  go again.

         16                 I will avoid the temptation to cover

         17  the same ground that I have previously covered in

         18  other testimony, but I will reiterate the Giuliani

         19  Administration's position on the legislative

         20  travesty known as Intro. No. 472-A.

         21                 This bill seeks to undermine --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Please speak into

         23  the microphone.

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I am

         25  sorry -- the TLC's successful Persistent Violator
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          2  Program, by essentially allowing bad drivers more

          3  opportunities to demonstrate a willful disobedience

          4  of the laws and rules and regulations of the City

          5  and the State of New York.

          6                 It would also toss out the most vital

          7  consumer protections the riding public has ever seen

          8  in the regulatory history of the taxi and livery

          9  industry. And I would ask you to look to the

         10  consumer chart. You will see before you where the

         11  TLC, under their proposal, harassment, assault of a

         12  passenger, I am only going to highlight a couple of

         13  them, that is three TLC points. The City Council

         14  bill has totally stripped it, so therefore you can

         15  assault a passenger and you can pay a fine and you

         16  can simply go back to assaulting them.

         17                 There is overcharge. The same thing,

         18  we assigned a two, you gave it zero. Discourteous,

         19  we gave it two, you gave it zero.

         20                 So, that is obviously very, very

         21  important to us. This is about consumer safety.

         22                 While the 208 drivers in the

         23  Persistent Violator Program has taken action in the

         24  months between July 27th, 1998, through December

         25  28th, 1998, fall clear short of the thousands of
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          2  people that the industry predicted this program

          3  would affect.

          4                 They represent a problem in the

          5  industry, the small numbers clearly show a problem

          6  in this industry, and that needed to be addressed

          7  immediately. And whether it was through the 149

          8  suspensions or the 55 revocations or the four who

          9  were required to take a refresher course, it is

         10  obvious this program is effective.

         11                 Of course anyone can point out to the

         12  208 drivers the program has identified thus far and

         13  easily explain why it has been such a success. I

         14  would like you to look at this chart and you will

         15  see a couple of the more egregious situations, which

         16  your bill would let these people continue to drive a

         17  cab in the City of New York.

         18                 Mr. Yonis (phonetic), he is currently

         19  suspended under the DMV, okay? Before the DMV he has

         20  had a total of 17 suspensions with the DMV, he has

         21  had 23 DMV convictions, for a total conviction point

         22  of 55. At the moment that we caught him he had six

         23  active, he has had four accidents, one rendered a

         24  man quadriplegic and the same accident was also a

         25  death. Under this great program the persistent
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          2  violator for the first time in the history of the

          3  Taxi and Limousine Commission we were able to revoke

          4  his license.

          5                 Example number two, Mr. Miscotti. His

          6  DMV is valid. He is a scafflow, if he pays his fines

          7  he will get his DMV back but he won't get his hack

          8  back. His DMV suspension, three points. DMV

          9  conviction, 18 DMV convictions, for a total of 39.

         10  Then you move down and I guess he has had 12

         11  different accidents. His license when we caught him,

         12  he had 22 TLC convictions, he has had 22 over the

         13  history of his license TLC convictions, he had nine

         14  open at the time we caught him, and now, thank

         15  Heavens, he no longer has his hack license.

         16                 But there is another perspective here

         17  that we believe has been overlooked by the City

         18  Council and I am here today to share that with you.

         19  When I do this, it is important that you first

         20  understand that these 208 drivers were culled from a

         21  pool of 79,733 licensees. That leaves 79,525 drivers

         22  that you could choose to look at as potential

         23  candidates for the Persistent Violator Program.

         24                 But you could also choose to look at

         25  them as drivers, who thanks to the deterrent effect
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          2  of the Persistent Violator Program, are making

          3  conscious decisions not to make bad decisions that

          4  will result in them being identified as persistent

          5  violators, and therefore, either being suspended or

          6  revoked.

          7                 The Giuliani Administration clearly

          8  chooses to look at the ladder. We choose to advocate

          9  for drivers who pride themselves on serving and

         10  serving public safety.

         11                 If you will look at this chart, this

         12  chart tells the story, ladies and gentlemen. You

         13  have a driver pool of 79,733 licensees. You have 149

         14  from July through the end of December who have been

         15  suspended, you have 55 that have been revoked. Those

         16  are 55 egregious drivers that I believe nobody in

         17  this room would want on the road, and you have had

         18  four that have gone to refresher courses. So, what

         19  you are telling me and what the industry is telling

         20  me, it is going to destroy everyone, we are going

         21  out of business. This is the real deal, this is the

         22  real numbers.

         23                 We choose to advocate for drivers who

         24  even though they may be on the verge of an action by

         25  either DMV or TLC, they have taken this chance,
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          2  their last chance seriously and they have taken it

          3  responsibly. And yes, we choose to advocate for the

          4  majority of the drivers who have driven well from

          5  the absolute get-go and continue to do so.

          6                 We choose to advocate for these

          7  drivers by holding them to a higher standard, a

          8  standard that they, the drivers, have proven is

          9  realistic, and will combat the negative stereotype

         10  that even the good drivers are subject to thanks to

         11  that small handful of irresponsible dangers.

         12                 And I guess in closing I would like

         13  to ask you one question, Council members: Are you

         14  prepared to send a message to the public that we

         15  serve in this City the Council chooses to advocate

         16  for those 55 egregious drivers that have their

         17  licenses revoked, or the 149 that were suspended for

         18  very good reason; or do you choose to stand up for

         19  the 79,529?

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: First of all, I

         22  want to correct the record.

         23                 Regarding the point system, the

         24  present bill, the latest copy, the latest bill, and

         25  in my testimony I made that statement, we eliminated
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          2  the point system and we allowed it to go according

          3  to your --

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Had Council been

          5  gracious enough to share it with us less than, you

          6  know, not an hour ago, we would have put up --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I have to tell you,

          8  the last copy, version of the bill, just came over

          9  12:00. They are still amending it still this

         10  morning. So I am sorry that you didn't get it

         11  earlier, but I will just tell you that it was sent

         12  over, as far as staff told me.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         14  Councilman, the one we have, Mr. Chairman, it is not

         15  mentioned there, it is totally silent on that. So

         16  you must be talking about something that we haven't

         17  seen at all.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We faxed a bill

         19  about 12:00 to, 12:30 to your office, that is what I

         20  was told. Okay, so that issue, the point system, we

         21  are not getting involved in the point system, we

         22  are, you know, allowing you to propose a point,

         23  which you have, and we are going to work obviously

         24  off of your point system, that is what the bill

         25  calls for at the present time.
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          2                 In regard to particularly the most

          3  egregious drivers that you highlighted, I would

          4  agree with you. I mean, they all have over six

          5  points -- I am sorry, over ten points, and you know,

          6  that is something that they shouldn't be on the

          7  road. Someone with 18 points or 23 points and three

          8  convictions or 17 -- I am sorry, suspensions,

          9  shouldn't be driving. And as we always said, that

         10  you have that right, even without any point system,

         11  to get the most egregious drivers off the road,

         12  because not only you, but I know predecessors of

         13  yours have had suspended licenses and revoked

         14  people's licenses.

         15                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Mr.

         16  Chairman, that is really unfair, because if a

         17  horrendous situation came to the Chair's attention,

         18  yes, we could do that. But obviously we want this to

         19  be a uniformed policy across the road.

         20                 One of the most successful things

         21  about persistent violators is very clear, everybody

         22  knows the number of points that triggers, not what

         23  comes to the Chair's attention because the media

         24  call me or someone who knows me call me, that is

         25  inappropriate. We want to treat everybody the same
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          2  way, and that is the only way that ever happened, is

          3  when it came to the attention of the Chair. So that

          4  is not a fair analogy, and I am the only one in my

          5  agency that can suspend a license or revoke a

          6  license, so that is truly an unfair analogy.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I agree with you.

          8  That is why we agree to the six and ten points, the

          9  system that you have in place, because I think that

         10  is the right thing, and we realize that someone with

         11  over ten points, and that is the system they use for

         12  the Transit Authority and for those who are driving

         13  public buses --

         14                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: That

         15  is the Transit Authority, sir, and I really didn't

         16  have a chance to analyze your bill because we didn't

         17  get it. But what I have seen is you get a brand new

         18  license every 12 months. You are giving them a brand

         19  new license with a clean slate every 12 months, not

         20  any professional regulatory agency I know of

         21  operates that way. If you believe that the bus

         22  authority operates that way, then you have to

         23  clarify it for us, because we don't believe that is

         24  the case, and that is part of why this is so

         25  outrageous. You could technically get 19 points, get

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  nine -- or 18 points, you get nine on December 31st,

          3  January 1st you get a new license, you can go out

          4  and get another nine, and you can still be driving

          5  your cab. That is outrageous.

          6                 You shouldn't have a license if you

          7  have gotten 18 points.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We are talking

          9  about between 12 and 18 months, because you have

         10  after 18 months the person gets a new license. So,

         11  it is the same.

         12                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No,

         13  sir. No, you don't get a new license in 18 months.

         14  It is a review period.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Clean slate.

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: We

         17  never had that proposal. No, sir.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Well, what is given

         19  to us, and I guess people have heard differently, it

         20  is a clean slate that you are given after 18 months.

         21  You abide by the 18-month period of what the DMV

         22  does.

         23                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It is

         24  the review period backward, sir. We never gave

         25  anyone a clean slate. It's a rolling window, is
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          2  exactly what it is. It is an 18-month period that

          3  starts, let's say on July 1st, arbitrary date, and

          4  rolls forward.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So you are saying

          6  under your rules now, after 18 months, you

          7  automatically don't begin a new period for

          8  accumulation of points?

          9                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: That

         10  is correct, you do not. And actually under our new

         11  rules you get a license every two years, so that is

         12  particularly -- your bill is just so devastating it

         13  is beyond belief that they should be able to go in

         14  -- it really just puts a bounty on getting a new

         15  license. Rack up 29 points one day and then go in on

         16  January 1st and get a new license. I mean that is

         17  outrageous. I mean, it is really frightening. It is

         18  so against public safety.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Again, the

         20  difference is the time period, because the time

         21  period, if you are saying now every two years, I

         22  don't know, is there a time period that you have

         23  that you allow for someone to get a new license, to

         24  come in and the old points don't count? Is there

         25  ever a time, ever for the rest of their lives, they
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          2  can never do any --

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          4  Eighteen months.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Eighteen months. It

          6  is 18 months.

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It is

          8  for 18 months, but you don't get a new license at

          9  the end --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I can't give a new

         11  license.

         12                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

         13  that is what the bill says.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, no, Madame

         15  Chair, you look at the bill. I don't issue licenses

         16  and we don't have the authority to issue licenses.

         17  All we are saying is that the cumulative point, and

         18  you don't have a right also to issue a DMV license.

         19  All you are doing is the 18-month period, is a

         20  regulation regarding your role to suspend someone's

         21  license, not the DMV. We still can't control DMV.

         22  They have a right to do whatever they want. We don't

         23  control it, that is a state authority. What I am

         24  saying is the 18 months -- the difference between my

         25  bill and your bill is between 12 and 18. Our clean
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          2  slate is like your clean slate, it is exactly the

          3  same way.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          5  Councilman, when you read your bill, and maybe other

          6  people besides you and I should interpret this, but

          7  it clearly is not that you get a new license every

          8  12 months, and you cannot look back. Our 18 months

          9  is a look back period. That may have been your

         10  intention, sir, but that is not what the bill says.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Let me read for you

         12  what it has in our bill. Any taxicab or for-hire

         13  vehicle driver who has been found guilty of

         14  violations of the Commissioner's rules, such that

         15  six or more points have been assessed against his or

         16  her taxicab or for-hire vehicle driver's license

         17  within a 12-month period, and whose license has not

         18  been revoked shall his or her taxicab or for-hire

         19  vehicle drivers license suspended for 30 days. Where

         20  a person has issued a newer taxicab, for-hire

         21  vehicle driver's license, subsequent to the

         22  effective date of the subdivision, the first 12

         23  months shall commence on the date such license is

         24  issued.

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:
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          2  That's it, Councilman. That's it in a nutshell.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So what's the

          4  problem?

          5                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: That

          6  means that the day before I am revoked or suspended

          7  I go in and I get a new license, I start all over.

          8  You have put a bounty on that type of dishonesty.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: For startover for

         10  calculating points, the same way you do it with the

         11  18 month. It is the same thing with the 18-month

         12  period.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No,

         14  it isn't.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You come in here

         16  after 18 months, your points accumulate over an

         17  18-month period; am I right? Am I correct?

         18                 COMMISSIONER Mc-GRATH-McKECHNIE:

         19  Councilman, we are looking at an 18-month rolling

         20  window. You are talking about an absolute 12. It is

         21  totally different. On the 18 months I could have one

         22  point today and three months later I could get

         23  another point. What your bill is saying is that if I

         24  am clever enough to go in and get rid of my license

         25  the day before I am (a) suspended, or (b) revoked, I
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          2  am going to get a brand new license and none of my

          3  driving history is going to be taken into

          4  consideration, and we oppose that vehemently.

          5                 This is a professional driver. They

          6  should be held to a higher standard, not a lesser

          7  standard than the average ordinary motorist.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, we are

          9  speaking on the same issue and I don't want to go

         10  over and over it. You have about an 18-month period

         11  and we are talking about a 12-month period.

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Mr. Chairman, the

         13  poor draftsmanship that is in this bill is what the

         14  problem is. The problem is for a strict 12-month

         15  period, one that starts and one that ends 365 days

         16  later. Our bill and our proposed bill looks at an

         17  18-month window going backward, and that is a

         18  significant difference.

         19                 If what you are saying is that you

         20  want to look back in any 12-month period of time and

         21  say is this person -- then we can have a discussion,

         22  but you are looking at a constant static 12-month

         23  period, and every year starts fresh all over again.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Again, we are still

         25  on the same thing about the 18-month and 12-month.
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          2  Maybe what you are talking about is prospective -- I

          3  am sorry, retroactive instead of prospective, if

          4  that is what you are talking about going back.

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: No.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Maybe someone can

          7  help me understand this. I am clear, you have an

          8  18-month period and we are talking about a 12-month

          9  period, and we don't give a new license, all --

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Why don't I try

         11  this. We will try it real simple. During a 12-month

         12  period that starts on January 1st, anybody who gets

         13  points during January 1 to December 31, under your

         14  proposal they get a clean slate on January 1 and

         15  they start all over again and it is on annual

         16  periods.

         17                 Our bill starts on January 1 and goes

         18  through the following July, June 30th, and it looks

         19  back. Any time that there are violations that have

         20  accumulated under our approach, under our number of

         21  points, you look back over the previous 18-month

         22  period.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I agree with you,

         24  it is the same. You are talking about from 12

         25  months, we are talking about from 18 months.
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: No, sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You are looking

          4  back --

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: No, sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You are looking

          7  back.

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Let me try again,

          9  because you obviously don't understand what I am

         10  saying.

         11                 It is not the same thing. You look

         12  back on a constant 12-month period, but when you get

         13  to the last day of your 12 months, on the next day

         14  the clock starts all over again. Our clock never

         15  starts all over again, it looks back 18 months and

         16  keeps rolling forward.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand what

         18  you are saying --

         19                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         20  Councilman, maybe that was your intention but that

         21  is not --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, no. It is our

         23  intention to follow the pattern of when you go for

         24  DMV. When you have points you have an absolute

         25  period of time with the DMV, and we are following
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          2  that pattern. The Department of Motor Vehicles are

          3  experts and they are people that oversee driver's

          4  licenses not only for taxicabs, but for truck

          5  drivers, for everybody, and we are following their

          6  pattern. Obviously they realize that people can

          7  change. There are people that after they have done a

          8  terrible thing and they have accumulated a certain

          9  amount of points, after a certain period they repent

         10  and they try to change their lifestyle, then

         11  obviously you give everybody a break. Even criminals

         12  get a break in life. This is not a criminal, this is

         13  far from a criminal, it is someone trying to make a

         14  livelihood and maybe they can learn from that.

         15                 And also, you know it, Commissioner,

         16  that any time, any period of time, you said it

         17  yourself, that if there is anybody so egregious out

         18  there. I am not talking about the 149, the 55 and

         19  the four, I am talking about all of the people that

         20  are so egregious out there, you have a right to

         21  revoke anybody's license if they are a danger to the

         22  public under the statutes that you have under your

         23  rules and regulations.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Mr. Chairman, you

         25  should call in these supposed experts from DMV, who
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          2  you seem to invoke so nicely, and ask them about

          3  their 18-month rolling. Their definition is exactly

          4  the same as ours, and completely inconsistent with

          5  your 12-month. So, I would encourage you to talk to

          6  these experts that you hold so highly, because you

          7  will find that they agree with the Administration

          8  and not with you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Their point system

         10  is a lot higher, first of all, before they suspend.

         11  And also, that they may take into consideration,

         12  again, the same way that this Commissioner had the

         13  right to take into consideration any driver that is

         14  out there that is an egregious driver and is a

         15  danger to the public, the Commissioner, and also DMV

         16  judge, have a right to suspend, and that we are not

         17  taking that away from you because I think that is an

         18  absolute right that you need.

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: No, you should

         20  want to take away that right, but you should create

         21  lack of discretion. You should create in a

         22  professional environment for professional drivers

         23  certain rules. As of right rules, that whether you

         24  hit this or not there is no discretion involved. The

         25  discretion breeds problems. You should have a
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          2  consistent, professional program for professional

          3  drivers.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: That is why we have

          5  now abided by and went along your numbers, six and

          6  ten points, so that is consistent, people know that

          7  if you get these amount of points of accumulation

          8  that is what is going to happen, your license is

          9  going to be suspended or revoked.

         10                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Over

         11  a 12-month period, versus an 18-month period, which

         12  was our proposal, and ours is a rolling stock, yours

         13  is an absolute cut-off.

         14                 And Council Member, one of the things

         15  that is most unfair about the DMV system is, nothing

         16  happens until you trigger 11 points, because the DMV

         17  system is for people like you and for me, it is not

         18  for professional drivers, and you may get 11, you

         19  know, you may trigger 11 and I may trigger 11, and

         20  under their arbitrary system you may be treated one

         21  way and I could be treated another way. I could be

         22  treated better, you could be treated better. That is

         23  unfair, that is inherently unfair.

         24                 What we want to do is we want to

         25  level the playing field for everybody, so we all
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          2  know what the rules are. Give us a chance to all

          3  comply.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: That is what we are

          5  doing now. We are not differing anything, just maybe

          6  between the 12 and 18 months there may be some

          7  things that we differ a little bit. But we are still

          8  consistent, we are still sending a message out

          9  there, still six and ten points. We are not far away

         10  from where you are.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Your concept of

         12  far away is completely different than ours, there is

         13  a substantial difference of opinion as to where you

         14  are and we are. Twelve months to 18 months is

         15  substantial. It is not a little difference.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, I understand

         17  that you feel that way. That is why we went for the

         18  12 months.

         19                 I told you we could disagree. You

         20  feel strongly about that, so do we. So, after a lot

         21  of consideration, a lot of research, this is what we

         22  came up with.

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Would you share

         24  that research with us? Will you please share that

         25  research and evidence of why it is necessary to cut
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          2  this back from 18 months to 12?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Like my counsel

          4  said, would you share your research with us?

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: We have shared

          6  our research with you. Here it is, we have the

          7  results there. Much more than you want over a

          8  six-month period of time. Only 55 licenses were

          9  revoked out of almost 80,000 and 149 out of 80,000

         10  were suspended. Who are you showing for here?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I think it is

         12  inappropriate what you're --

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: It is not

         14  inappropriate, Council member.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: It is. I am not

         16  going to get into a discussion with you on that.

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Fine.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: If you want to talk

         19  to me privately about that --

         20                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: But

         21  Council Member, many people in this room testified

         22  that there would be thousands. This program is seven

         23  months old, this is the real deal, 55 revocations,

         24  149. You are not protecting the good driver, you are

         25  lumping everyone into the same category, the good,
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          2  the bad and the -- what about the 47,000 that have

          3  no points? Don't you think you should address their

          4  needs and do something positive for them? We do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: It is interesting,

          6  because at the last hearing we had two cab drivers,

          7  one was 30 or 40 years in the business, I mean that

          8  is what they claimed, they looked, didn't look like

          9  they were 20 years old, and one was going to be

         10  suspended -- you know, it is since December when I

         11  had that hearing, and they had -- for all the years

         12  they didn't not have any type of violation, and

         13  because of the new rules they were affected by it.

         14                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         15  Councilman, I have a nice bridge I would like to

         16  sell you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I know that you

         18  want to not believe that, but I must tell you, when

         19  people come to testify before us, and they give us

         20  their story, the history of being a taxi driver, I

         21  can't look at the DMV license because I don't have

         22  access to that, but when someone comes to me, I

         23  didn't swear them in, but let me just tell you,

         24  there are many people coming to this microphone who

         25  not always tell us exactly what they should be
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          2  telling us, but I want to believe them. Their story

          3  to me was credible enough for me to believe it.

          4                 And I will tell you something else:

          5  you know that you can get rid of drivers, suspend

          6  drivers who are really bad, without any program, and

          7  I know you want to have a program, but it is not

          8  something brand new that we can't get rid of the bad

          9  drivers. We want to get rid of the bad drivers. What

         10  is fascinating is that just this morning, a staff

         11  member of the City Council waited 45 minutes for a

         12  cab, and he wants to know why. In Manhattan 45

         13  minutes he was trying to hail a cab. And he called

         14  me, and I said what do you want me to do, get you a

         15  cab? But when I explained to them the problems now

         16  are the drivers are absolutely refusing to drive

         17  during the day. They are frightened. They just don't

         18  want their licenses revoked. That's the fact of

         19  life.

         20                 Come with me any time you want, any

         21  of the garages, and you will find -- they are

         22  telling me, and I have seen it myself, because I

         23  went myself there to some of these places, 30

         24  percent of the cabs are not on the road because they

         25  can't get drivers.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          3  Councilman, we hear the same thing, and we don't

          4  wait for you, we go all the time. And that is not

          5  true. And I watched the video tape of some of those

          6  drivers who got up and said, you know, everything

          7  from I am not going to renew my license to they are

          8  picking on me, I don't have points. Some I looked

          9  at, some clearly did have points. It goes right back

         10  to the same argument thousands are going to lose

         11  their license - not true. Compliance is high. Why is

         12  compliance high? I hope because it is a profession,

         13  people do not want to lose their livelihood and they

         14  are going to comply with the law. Councilman, that

         15  is a good thing, that is something that you want to

         16  promote.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, I hear you.

         18                 Council Member -- there are other

         19  Council members who have questions.

         20                 Council Member Stabile.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: First of all,

         22  I can't support 472-A at all, and I am speaking

         23  honestly for the 47,552 good drivers who are

         24  courteous, who do take care of the riding public

         25  every day on a daily basis.
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          2                 I will refer to another story.

          3  Someone told me, he was very upset, he got a ticket

          4  from TLC because his taxicab was dirty. So, I said

          5  to him where is your taxi? It was outside. His taxi

          6  wasn't only dirty, his seats had iron rods sticking

          7  up and if anyone would have gotten in they would

          8  have gotten hurt. But he said they were just

          9  harassing him.

         10                 When we first went over this bill

         11  several months ago, me and Councilman Dear had some

         12  very strong words about this, I totally disagree

         13  with the whole point system the way it is. I can't

         14  understand leaving the scene of an accident or

         15  anything like that, giving the zero zero zero. I

         16  haven't seen any changes in this thing up until now

         17  also, nothing at all, and I am just as in the dark

         18  as you are with any new changes that have been added

         19  to this.

         20                 But I just want to add the point, to

         21  the professional drivers out there, the professional

         22  associations, don't you want a higher standard for

         23  the riding public? What the hell is wrong with you?

         24                 If you want to make sure the public

         25  wants a ride in your cab, and you want to give them
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          2  the best quality, why would you be afraid of this?

          3  Why would anybody put fear out there if something is

          4  positive, to make the public feel safe and

          5  comfortable.

          6                 The other thing I think we have to

          7  do, Madame Chair, is put extra officers on at night,

          8  since they don't want to ride in the day, these bad

          9  drivers, maybe we should be out at night catching

         10  them at night then.

         11                 I will not support the bill because I

         12  don't think it is fair to the consumer. It is not a

         13  consumer-friendly bill. And I think it is really at

         14  a point right now where push comes to tug (sic), and

         15  I would like to hear some clarifications from you on

         16  this 12 to 18.

         17                 On the bill that we have before us

         18  right now, after the 12-month period is a cut-off,

         19  you start fresh, January 1. Well, you don't even

         20  start fresh with the Department of Motor Vehicle on

         21  a 12-month period. You get passing a red light or

         22  speeding, it stays on your license more than 12

         23  months, and you don't get a fresh license after a

         24  year, and you are not carrying the public, you are

         25  only carrying yourself or your family in general.
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          2  You are not carrying a total stranger or any public

          3  safety of any children or anything else handed to

          4  us.

          5                 If a school bus driver gets one

          6  serious violation, it is suspended immediately.

          7  Nobody is hollering about his job or his factor, but

          8  I think the quality out there has to be addressed,

          9  and I think this is an unfriendly consumer bill.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: One

         12  thing I would like to say is for anyone who would

         13  like to be in touch with the TLC, the Persistent

         14  Violator and this entire Giuliani reform package has

         15  been a quantum leap for public safety. I come here

         16  to assure you, ladies and gentlemen, if you never

         17  believe another word I say, the public supports this

         18  reform package. It is all about public safety, it is

         19  all about protecting drivers, it is about protecting

         20  good drivers and people out there trying to make a

         21  living. This bill is good. I mean, our mail is

         22  running hundreds of letters --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So we are

         24  protecting the quality driver, the professional

         25  driver, and most of all, we are protecting the
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          2  courteous drivers that are out there every day doing

          3  their job the way they should do their job.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: This

          5  bill, Councilman, as I said to you before, this

          6  bill, this protects fat cat owners. If you want to

          7  do something to protect the good drivers, you put in

          8  a professional standard. And if you enforce it not

          9  just at your discretion, but if you enforce it

         10  across the board, and you start to look, and the TLC

         11  is already doing that. We have held hearings on the

         12  Commission system and on the leasing system. This

         13  bill is about protecting the big lease agents, and

         14  this bill is about protecting the big fleet and to

         15  hell with the drivers.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Well, on that

         17  note, I will end on that note. Several days ago I

         18  received a phone call from a gentleman from Florida,

         19  Boca Raton, and he was very upset that he had five

         20  or six medallions and his drivers were being

         21  harassed totally on the street, and he is a resident

         22  also of Howard Beach, Queens, and he was totally

         23  upset about this whole thing and he wanted to make

         24  sure I was going to vote for this bill to see this

         25  bill passed.
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          2                 When I asked him, when was the last

          3  time you looked at your cabs, or you know who is

          4  driving, do you know who your drivers are, can you

          5  give me a list of their names, so I can refer to it?

          6  And maybe I can talk to TLC and see what really

          7  happened, he only knew two of the drivers out of the

          8  six drivers by name; and has he seen his cabs in the

          9  last year? He hasn't left Florida in two years.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         12  Miller.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you,

         14  Madame Chair.

         15                 One thing I wanted to clarify for the

         16  record, the critical driver program which is half of

         17  this enforcement effort, right; you have two

         18  separate efforts, the Persistent Violator and the

         19  Critical Driver. The Critical Driver Program has

         20  been in effect for how long?

         21                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: The

         22  Critical Driver Program was passed, I am sorry,

         23  November -- it is effective now, it was passed late

         24  November. I think it was November 26th.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So, the staff
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          2  is telling me it has been effective since February

          3  15th.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          5  Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: On Monday.

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: At

          8  the same time because of Critical Driver, let me

          9  tell you one of the most important things about

         10  Critical Driver, because what it did is it gave us

         11  the ability, you know the expression "double

         12  banging"?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

         14                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         15  Because of Critical Driver, and we can now track the

         16  DMV, we do not have to double bang drivers anymore.

         17  The only way we could get them into our jurisdiction

         18  before was to go forward with that TLC summons, we

         19  don't need to do that now.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So, in other

         21  words, prior to the Critical Driver, your efforts to

         22  police, as it were, the driver pool, and the bad

         23  driver pool were only half, they were only half

         24  complete?

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No,
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          2  there is two segments to it. You need the full

          3  picture.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          6  Persistent Violator is TLC rules, and Critical

          7  Driver is DMV rules.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right.

          9                 So, you are saying, though, that for

         10  the past year or so as you have been -- or since the

         11  Persistent Violator Program came on board, it hasn't

         12  been a complete enforcement effort, which is why you

         13  felt the need, because you weren't capturing all of

         14  what you wanted to capture so you felt the need to

         15  do the critical driver.

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Oh,

         17  it was part of our May 28th proposal.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Excellent. And

         19  that came into effect on Monday.

         20                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So then

         22  wouldn't you say then that the chart that you have

         23  here, for which you are talking about the way that

         24  the programs, and you have sort of implied that this

         25  is the pool which is affected as a result of our
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          2  standardized approach, the pool that is affected,

          3  you would say then that this is sort of 50 percent

          4  wrong?

          5                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No.

          6  No, no.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: You wouldn't?

          8                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No.

          9  You are mixing apples and oranges.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.

         11                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: We

         12  only talked --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Straighten out

         14  my fruit --

         15                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: At

         16  the last Council meeting, if you recall, the only

         17  item on the agenda was Persistent Violators.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right.

         19                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: The

         20  Critical Driver was not discussed at all.

         21                 So, this is critical and we heard the

         22  same thing about Persistent Violator as we know hear

         23  about Critical Driver.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:
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          2  Thousands of drivers are going to go out of

          3  business.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

          5                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Out

          6  of those thousands, 55 in fact have gone out. Why?

          7  Because it is clear, it is concise and there is a

          8  lot of compliance out there.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right.

         10                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: We

         11  believe with Critical Driver, it is going to be the

         12  same thing, that there is going to be a lot of

         13  compliance.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: But you are

         15  not entirely sure.

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

         17  we weren't absolutely sure before, but since this is

         18  what we do for a living, we had a real good idea and

         19  we were right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Absolutely.

         21                 But I am just trying to understand,

         22  because it seems to me we have been trying to sort

         23  through your testimony, it seems to me I am getting

         24  sort of two conflicting signals.

         25                 On the one hand what I hear is that
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          2  the bill that the Committee is considering, and I

          3  understand, of course, I haven't had weeks to review

          4  it myself and because it was being amended up to the

          5  final hour, and you have obviously not had much time

          6  as you would like to review it, so some of your

          7  testimony regarding the point system was dated to

          8  the previous 472 --

          9                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         10  Councilman, can I just say, and you can clarify for

         11  me --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Please.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: --

         14  Where I am wrong here.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         17  Because I did read this coming over in the car, and

         18  I didn't see anything about the consumer points in

         19  that bill. So, if it is there --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: What that

         21  means, of course, is that if there is nothing in the

         22  bill about the consumer points, it means there is no

         23  change to your regulatory system, so the TLC -- the

         24  fact that you didn't see anything, you should read

         25  as good news for your point of view. Because what it
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          2  means is that your regulations are still in effect.

          3  So this bill doesn't affect the consumer system, so

          4  that you and we and the riding taxi, riding public

          5  can all rest easy with regard to the consumer point

          6  system.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Council Member,

          8  that statement is outrageous on its face. The bill,

          9  while it keeps the point structure in place, puts it

         10  forward on a static 12-month period.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right.

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: It provides for

         13  annually a class that can gain back four points.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: The state doesn't

         16  provide for an annual class so they can get points

         17  back. I mean, the bill --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: No, no, I am

         19  not saying, Mr. Deputy Mayor, that -- I think the

         20  Chairwoman and I were having a discussion about the

         21  consumer point system, and in her testimony she

         22  stated that this bill was an outrage because we were

         23  saying that people could do -- and there is   bunch

         24  of things that they could do that there would be

         25  zero points assessed for. I was just merely
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          2  clarifying what the bill is, which as you know, it

          3  does not do that, and I personally think that is a

          4  good thing, and I am sure that the Chair and you

          5  think it is a good thing.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Let me take an

          7  opportunity to explain the 50/50 concept that you

          8  have that is incorrect.

          9                 If you look at the chart that is up

         10  on the left over there, that looks at the same 70,

         11  almost 80,000 drivers that are out there and how

         12  many are affected by the Critical Driver Program

         13  over that same period. Forty-seven and a half

         14  thousand, 47,552 have no points under the structure

         15  as currently. Fifty-five of them have one point,

         16  almost 10,000 have two points, there is the data for

         17  you. And these are two separate programs.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay, I am

         19  looking at this and I am not a calculator myself,

         20  but I am looking at this, and I think we could have

         21  a serious and reasonable difference of opinion.

         22                 The Critical Driver under your

         23  current, under your plan is six and ten, under our

         24  plan it is six and ten, although ours is 12 months

         25  as opposed to 18, and let's just shelve for a
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          2  moment, please, the discussion on the roll, but

          3  under your plan it is six and ten.

          4                 The way that I understand this, you

          5  are saying it is not a major affect, and from what I

          6  am reading here you have got 4,000, 5,500, 6,500 --

          7  I can't do the full math, but something that

          8  approaches 10,000 drivers who would either be

          9  suspended or have their licenses revoked under the

         10  Critical Driver Program.

         11                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No,

         12  no, sir. You are assuming that there is absolutely

         13  no compliance and everyone is going to go out and

         14  get another violation and another conviction.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: This is looking

         16  back over that same period of time. What we have

         17  proposed --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yours goes

         19  prospective.

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Prospective and a

         21  rolling period. And there is always in effect when

         22  there is enforcement and consistent guidelines,

         23  people understand what is going on and you see, and

         24  we have seen --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Well, and I am
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          2  willing to bet, if you have got that there are

          3  10,000 drivers who, if we applied it retroactively,

          4  would either, and that is almost 20 percent, almost

          5  20 percent of the entire driver pool, so you are

          6  saying if we applied your program retroactively,

          7  almost 20 percent of the driver pool would either

          8  have their licenses suspended or revoked.

          9                 Now, I am willing to bet that if we

         10  did up a similar, very good looking color chart,

         11  there would be thousands of drivers -- you can't

         12  tell me that all of those people had their

         13  violations occur -- in the outside the 18th, in the

         14  16th, 17th or 18th month. Many of them I am sure had

         15  those violations occur during a one-year period. So

         16  that under the strict and uniform standard, which

         17  472-A would impose, there would be I am sure

         18  thousands of drivers who would have accumulated the

         19  requisite number of points, six and ten, during a

         20  one-year period that would also. And we would agree

         21  with you, hope, under a uniform standard,

         22  prospectively, would indulge in greater compliance.

         23                 I am interested that this chart came

         24  out now because the old chart, this is why I am sort

         25  of confused --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: These

          3  are two separate charts. One is TLC violations --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Of course they

          5  are separate charts.

          6                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

          7  you know, what I don't understand, Councilman, is

          8  whatever the numbers are, I just want to remind

          9  people of my previous testimony, this is not a

         10  numbers game, it is one driver --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Well, it is a

         12  numbers game though.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: There

         14  are dangerous drivers, I want them off the road, and

         15  Councilman, you are my Councilman, I would hope you

         16  would want them off the road too.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Absolutely. I

         18  agree with you completely, but I would disagree with

         19  you with respect to --

         20                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It is

         21  not about just seating people in cabs.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: When you say

         23  it is not a numbers game, I don't know how you say

         24  that it is not a numbers game --

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It's
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          2  not. It's clear, it's public safety.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Well, for

          4  example, then why is it that you have an 18-month

          5  limit? I mean, what is magic about the 18 months?

          6  Why isn't it 24 months?

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It is

          8  consistent with State DMV. That is one thing, that

          9  is a rule marker.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Let's leave

         11  aside the DVM. Conceptually --

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: You can't leave

         13  aside the DMV. The 18 months was done in accordance

         14  with State Statute rules and regulations, those

         15  things --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So you are

         17  saying if you could you would like to do 36 months,

         18  because there is nothing magic about 18 months.

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: No, no, no. You

         20  can't make it --

         21                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: What

         22  we would like to say is we would like to hold New

         23  York City taxi drivers to a professional standard.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right. And I

         25  think we can agree with that. I would say that a
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          2  taxi driver that logs in an 18-month period 450,000

          3  miles, and you and I in an 18-month period don't log

          4  anywhere near that, you are holding somebody clearly

          5  more accountable. In a 12-month period, taxi drivers

          6  drive -- what is it, 250,000, is it on average,

          7  400,000, because in a 12-month period --

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: The logic --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: But

         10  understand, Mr. Deputy Mayor, you can't tell me that

         11  it is not a numbers -- if we had had 472-A and we

         12  came to you and said we want it to be 17 months and

         13  27 days, you would not be sitting here telling me

         14  that it is an outrage and it is a disaster, and I

         15  can't believe, because there is nothing magic about

         16  the 18-month period, right?

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: There is

         18  something magic.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: There is?

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Listen.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I should

         22  listen, I am sorry.

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: It is consistent

         24  with state law in which we are mirror imaging the

         25  DMV rules so that the Critical Driver Program and
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          2  the Persistent Violator Program mirror image what is

          3  in state law.

          4                 If the State law was different, we

          5  would consider it. But to make some kind of equity

          6  between human life and a number is really

          7  disgusting, Councilman.

          8                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It is

          9  not about us, it is not about getting cabs on the

         10  street and just getting a driver in that cab --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Under state

         12  law it is 11 points to trigger suspension.

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: We are not

         14  talking about points, though, we are talking about a

         15  period of time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Oh, I see.

         17                 So, it is the state law -- we can't

         18  even think about changing the standard with regard

         19  to the time period because the state is so right

         20  about the time period --

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: No, no, no.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: But on the

         23  points you are all wrong.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Your arrogance is

         25  overwhelming.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: My arrogance?

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: I want to address

          4  the issue that someone who is on the road more hours

          5  of the day is more susceptible to getting tickets

          6  and more susceptible for breaking the law.

          7                 It mind-boggles me that you think

          8  that someone who drives a car 12 hours a day has a

          9  higher likelihood of speeding or has a higher

         10  likelihood of abusing a passenger, than one that is

         11  only on the road a few hours a day.

         12                 I don't understand why in your mind,

         13  being on the road for a longer period of time

         14  justifies having more tickets or having more

         15  violations.

         16                 The simplicity of your thought

         17  process you have to explain to us. Just because

         18  someone is a professional driver and drives for a

         19  long period of time, doesn't mean that they have the

         20  right to have more tickets, the right to violate the

         21  law, the right to do something that you and I don't

         22  do because we don't drive as frequently.

         23                 I don't understand that logic, can

         24  you explain it to me?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I doubt that
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          2  given my limited mental capacity I can adequately

          3  explain it to you, but let me just give it a try.

          4                 It seems to me that what we are

          5  talking about here is in either case we are talking

          6  about a uniform standard, regardless the Chairwoman

          7  or Chair of the TLC has the power, should it be in

          8  that person's belief, to suspend or revoke at any

          9  time, anybody's license when they feel there is a

         10  danger to the public. And we had gotten from you and

         11  from the chair, it seems to me, sort of conflicting

         12  testimony.

         13                 On the one hand we are told that this

         14  is a potential, enormous disaster. On the other hand

         15  we are told that there aren't that many drivers out

         16  there that are actually covered. And so because it

         17  is only, only in a six-month period only been about

         18  200 drivers who have had their license either

         19  suspended, affected, revoked or had to take a

         20  refresher course. So, it seems to me that what we

         21  are talking about here, when you do any type of

         22  enforcement standard and a meaningful standard, that

         23  it is the degree of the enforcement.

         24                 What I fail to understand from your

         25  testimony is why it is that the state, you say that
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          2  18 months can't be toyed with and under any

          3  circumstances because we do -- you have decided that

          4  the state regulations in this regard have to be

          5  followed, although you wouldn't say they legally

          6  have to be followed, you feel that it is the right

          7  thing to do to follow the state's regulations with

          8  regard to the 18 months. I would say that I don't

          9  consider the state to be necessarily in this case

         10  the gospel. I can't agree with you that if we said

         11  to you, well, we really want it to be 17 months that

         12  there would be this kind of -- maybe there would be

         13  this kind of -- maybe there would be this kind of

         14  acrimony, maybe --

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: There would be.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Well, it is

         17  entirely possible that that is the case, and that is

         18  your prerogative. I don't think that most people,

         19  reasonable people in looking at the difference

         20  between 18 months and 17 and a half months, would

         21  consider it to be a big difference. So there is a

         22  point at which what we are talking about is what is

         23  the appropriate standard to impose and it seems to

         24  me --

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Some day you may
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          2  run for office and have to be in the Executive

          3  Branch where you have to administer the laws, not

          4  just pass them, and be concerned about the

          5  consistency between how the points are accumulated

          6  at one level and how they are accumulated at another

          7  level. There is no reason to have a redundancy in

          8  the system, there is no reason to have anything

          9  inconsistent. If the state was 17 months and 27 days

         10  we would agree with the state, but that is all we

         11  are talking about here. There is nothing magical

         12  about the 18 month number other than consistency

         13  with the state program, period.

         14                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         15  Councilman, can I also say that to me it is really

         16  extraordinary that you are sitting there advocating

         17  for discretionary revocation, the Chair should have

         18  discretionary revocation. You know, that is only

         19  used in the most extreme and extraordinary

         20  circumstances and that is the only way it should

         21  ever be used. So, to advocate that as a system to

         22  remove drivers to me is on its face patently unfair.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Well, I think

         24  there is a uniform standard in 472-A, there is a

         25  uniform standard in the regulations which you
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          2  proposed and in either system there is the ability,

          3  in cases, you know, outrageous cases, some of which

          4  you shared before us in which there were six and ten

          5  points and it seemed to me there would be triggered

          6  at least some kind of action under the proposal of

          7  472-A, but regardless I was just merely commenting

          8  on what the system -- I am trying to understand the

          9  system --

         10                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It

         11  came to my attention because there was a death,

         12  Councilman.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you.

         14                 The Chairman is telling me that my

         15  time is up. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, I just want

         17  to -- we are going to make some changes, and after

         18  hearing and consulting with staff and discussing

         19  with some of my colleagues, with regard to the

         20  rolling window period between 12 months and 18

         21  months, and that of being absolute, in that of the

         22  18 months that allows the rolling system, we will

         23  adopt to that and we will change the proposal now

         24  before us, this proposed local law, and the Council

         25  will read into the law that the 12 months will not
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          2  be absolute, the 12 months will be a rolling period.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Mr. Chairman, in

          4  light of the fact that this legislation seems to

          5  also be rolling as the minutes go by, I would like

          6  to know, are you going to force the vote today of

          7  this Committee to move it forward? Or are you going

          8  to give this bill an opportunity to be read by

          9  everybody in this room?

         10                 I think in light of the fact that

         11  there is no evidence to support your point of view,

         12  there seems to be confusion as to how the system

         13  works. It is unfortunate that you would bring this

         14  to a vote at a point in time. I would just like to

         15  know, will you be bringing this to a vote?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We are planning to

         17  bring it to a vote today. We have had lots of

         18  discussion on this, it is not something that -- this

         19  is not the first time it is being heard.

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR LHOTA: Your refuse to

         21  the gavel is overwhelming (sic).

         22                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         23  Councilman Miller just testified that he hadn't read

         24  it either.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: No, I read it.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Oh.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I said I

          4  didn't see the final version.

          5                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

          6  you don't feel you need to see a final version of

          7  the bill before you vote on it, Councilman.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Madame Chair,

          9  clearly I need to see a final version of the bill. I

         10  read the bill before coming to this meeting, I read

         11  the original version, there has been several

         12  hearings on this subject, months of discussion and

         13  an amendment, the final bill is being amended, I

         14  will make sure it is in there and then we will all

         15  vote on it.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL STAFF: The following

         18  amendments will be made to proposed Intro. No.

         19  472-A.

         20                 In the new section 19-507.1, on page

         21  four, line 22 of the bill, the following language

         22  will be deleted, beginning with the words "where a

         23  person" and ending with the words "12-month period"

         24  which appear on line ten, page five of the bill.

         25                 On line 15, page five of the bill,
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          2  beginning with the words "where a person" and ending

          3  with the words "12-month period, on line three, page

          4  six of the bill, will be deleted.

          5                 On line seven, page six of the bill,

          6  beginning with the words "where a person" and ending

          7  with "12-month period" on line 17, page six of the

          8  bill, will be deleted.

          9                 In new section 19-507.2, beginning

         10  with line one on page eight, beginning with the

         11  words "where a person" and ending with the words

         12  "12-month period" on line 11, page eight, will be

         13  deleted.

         14                 On line 16 page eight, beginning with

         15  the words "where a person" and ending with the words

         16  "12-month period" on line four on page nine will be

         17  deleted. And that concludes the amendments to

         18  proposed Intro. No. 472-A.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Do you have any

         20  further comments or anything? We don't have any

         21  further questions.

         22                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         23  just have one comment. Are we now conceding that our

         24  interpretation of your law was correct, and that it

         25  was not drafted properly?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No. You testified

          3  to the fact and we made a change, and we are close

          4  to what you have in mind about driver safety and you

          5  have a program for driver safety, and we are

          6  somewhere in between.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So if we are

          8  in between, why can't we hold the vote? If we are in

          9  between, why can't we hold this vote for the day?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We decided we are

         11  voting today.

         12                 Thank you. Roll call on the coupled

         13  items. On Resolution 632, which is pursuant to

         14  Section 19-511.1 of the Administrative Code of the

         15  City of New York to review 15 determinations by the

         16  Taxi and Limousine Commission to approve

         17  applications for the renewal of a license to operate

         18  a base station and for a license by Carlton and

         19  Carlton Car Service to operate a new base station in

         20  the Bronx, as well as proposed Intro. No. 472-A, as

         21  amended, which the Council just amended, which

         22  basically is to amend the Administrative Code of the

         23  City of New York in relation to standards of conduct

         24  for drivers of taxicabs and for-hire vehicles.

         25                 Roll call.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Dear.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: McCaffrey.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Freed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Pass.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Can I take

         12  a moment to explain my vote?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Go ahead.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, the

         15  testimony that was given by the Commissioner

         16  actually, and when we changed and made the

         17  amendments, I think that was important. I had some

         18  problems with this bill when it came out, I want to

         19  make it clear, and I had some problems with this

         20  bill all along. I think the changes are fair, I

         21  think they will work, I think we need to give it a

         22  chance and because of that I will vote aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Stabile.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: May I be

         25  excused to explain my vote?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes, Council Member

          3  Stabile.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I vote yes on

          5  632 and on behalf of the consumer and the riding

          6  public of the taxis, I vote no on 472-A.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Freed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: If I may be

          9  excused to explain my vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes, Council Member

         11  Freed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Like a number

         13  of the other members, I also, although my name is on

         14  this bill, I had some questions and some concerns

         15  about it, not only for the riding public but also

         16  for the drivers, as well as the owners of the

         17  taxicabs, and of the fleets and the individuals, and

         18  I will vote aye on this bill. I remain having some

         19  concerns about leveling the playing field of the

         20  drivers and the owners and I would hope that we

         21  would continue to look at this and continue to

         22  suggest additional changes, because I think there

         23  are other things that have to be looked at.

         24                 Saying that, I vote aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Will the clerk call
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          2  the final vote.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Reso 632 is

          4  adopted by a vote of six in the affirmative and none

          5  in the negative with no abstentions. And Intro.

          6  472-A, adopted five in the affirmative, one in the

          7  negative, no abstentions. Please sign the reports.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          9  much. This concludes this hearing today, and we have

         10  a budget hearing I think on Thursday. March 11th,

         11  which is this Thursday. Thank you.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 3:24 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 8th day of March 1999.
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N
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          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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